

**ACTS**  
PASSED BY  
**THE LEGISLATURE**  
OF THE  
**STATE OF VERMONT,**  
At their October Session,  
**1823.**

PUBLISHED BY AUTHORITY.

**A. D. 1823.** supply any vacancy that may happen, at any time, by death, removal, resignation or non-acceptance of appointment, of any of the members of said corporation, at any meeting of said corporation, warned and holden, according to any rules or by-laws established: and the said Leverett, Hubbard and Leonard, or any two of them, are hereby authorized to warn and call the first meeting of said corporation, at any convenient time and place, within six months after the passing of this act, for the purpose of electing officers, and transacting any other business found necessary; and a majority of all the members of said corporation shall constitute a quorum.

First meeting by whom and within what time to be called.

Quorum.

Estate of corporation exempt from taxes.

**SEC. 5.** *And it is hereby further enacted,* That all the real and personal estate, of said corporation, held for the benefit of said academy, shall forever be exempt from taxation.

[*Passed Oct. 24, 1823.*]

Passed Oct. 31, 1823.

**CHAPTER 59.** AN ACT, to incorporate an aqueduct company in the village of Montpelier.

**SECTION 1.** *It is hereby enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Vermont,* That Daniel Baldwin, Calvin Newcomb, James H. Langdon, John Spalding and Joshua Y. Vail, and their associates and successors be, and they are hereby, constituted a body politic and corporate, by the name of the *State Street Aqueduct Company*, and by that name may sue and be sued, plead and be impleaded; may purchase, and hold, and convey, both real and personal estate; may have a common seal and the same alter at pleasure; and shall have and enjoy all the privileges incident to similar corporations, for the purpose of completing, repairing and enjoying said aqueduct.

State street aqueduct company in Montpelier incorporated.

General corporate powers, &c.

**SEC. 2.** *And it is hereby further enacted,* That said corporation may hold their first meeting at the office of Joshua Y. Vail, in said village of Montpelier on the fifteenth day of November, 1823, at five o'clock, P. M. for the purpose of choosing a president and clerk, and such other officers as shall be deemed necessary by said corporation; and establish the mode of calling future meetings; and may make and adopt such by-laws, rules and regulations, not repugnant to the laws and constitution of this state, and the same may repeal, alter, and amend, from time

First meeting when and where to be held.

May choose a president and other officers.

May make by-laws

to time, as they may deem necessary for the due regulation of their common concern and interest. A. D. 1823.

SEC. 3. *And it is hereby further enacted*, That said corporation shall have power to divide their grant into as many shares as they may deem proper; and said shares may be of equal or unequal value, as shall be deemed most convenient for the due exercise and enjoyment of the rights and privileges, granted by this act, and such shares when so divided shall be taken and considered as personal property, to all intents and purposes, and may be transferred, in such manner as said corporation by their by-laws may direct: and when any share or shares may be attached on mesne process, an attested copy of such process, with the officer's return thereon endorsed, shall be left with the clerk of said corporation, at the time of serving the same; otherwise said attachment shall be null and void; and such shares may be sold on execution in the same manner, as is now, or may hereafter be, provided, by law, for making sale of personal estate, on execution; and the officer serving the same, shall leave a copy of such execution, with his return thereon endorsed, with the clerk of said corporation, within six days next after such sale; and such share or shares, so sold, shall, to all intents and purposes, be vested in the purchaser.

Grant may be divided into shares.

Shares how attached.

Shares may be sold on execution.

Duty of officer levying execution.

SEC. 4. *And it is hereby further enacted*, That said corporation, shall have power to assess taxes, upon the members of said company, or upon the shares, and, in the name of said company, to sue for and collect the same, or to sell the shares for the collection of the same, in such manner as said corporation may, by their by-laws, establish.

Corporation may assess and collect taxes on shares.

[Passed Oct. 31, 1823.]

CHAPTER 60. AN ACT, establishing a corporation by the name of the Jamaica Turnpike Company. Passed Oct. 31, 1823.

SECTION 1. *It is hereby enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Vermont*, That, Timothy Burton, Amos Howard, 2d. Charles Phelps, John Kellogg, Alpheus Kellogg, Nathaniel Cheney, Bonyard Howard, Warren Wheeler, James Muzzey, and their associates, their heirs and assigns be, and they are hereby, constituted a corporation, by the name of the Jamaica Turnpike Company; and by that name may sue and be sued, may have a common seal to be

Jamaica turnpike company incorporated.

Corporate powers, &c.